
East Rockhill Township Board of Supervisors 

May 25, 2021 

Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
 

The regular business meeting of the East Rockhill Township Board of Supervisors was held at 7:00p.m. on 
May 25, 2021 in the meeting room at the East Rockhill Township Municipal Office, 1622 North Ridge Road, 
Perkasie, PA  18944.     
 

Present: David Nyman    Supervisor Chairperson  
  Gary Volovnik    Supervisor Vice-Chairperson 

Jim Nietupski    Supervisor Member 
   Marianne Morano   Township Manager 
   Will Oetinger, Esq.   Township Solicitor 
   Steve Baluh, P.E.   Township Engineer 

Jeff Scholl    Public Works Director 
   
The meeting was called to order at 6:59p.m. by Mr. Nyman with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Members of the public and press were present. 
 
Announcements: 
The Board of Supervisors held their monthly meeting with special meeting protocol.  The meeting public 
packet was available on the Township website.  In-person attendees are physically distanced and required 
to wear masks at all times. Pre-registration on a first-come first-serve basis with limited attendance was 
available.  Anyone wishing to provide public comment could do so on agenda and non-agenda items.  All 
public comment will be read at the Board’s meeting.   
 
The protocol was modified to not require masks for people in attendance who have received the COVID 
vaccine.  
 
An Executive Session will follow the regular meeting for real estate and personnel.  
 
Public Comment #1: 
There was none. 

 
Approval of Minutes and Bills Payable: 
Approval of Minutes from April 27, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to adopt the meeting minutes from the Board of 
Supervisors’ April 27, 2021 Regular Meeting as presented.  With no additional discussion, all present voted 
in favor. 
 
Payment Unpaid Bills dated May 21, 2021 in the amount of $207,884.93. 
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to approve payment of the Bills List dated May 
21, 2021 in the amount of $207,884.93 as presented.  With no additional discussion, all present voted in 
favor.    
 

MMorano
Draft



East Rockhill Township  
Board of Supervisors 

May 25, 2021 Minutes 
P a g e  | 2 of 4 

 

Township Manager’s Report:  Marianne Morano 
Pines of Pennridge Fence Deed Restriction.  Property owner Marie Seternus and prior owner Paul 
Seternus, 712 Campus Drive were present to request deed restriction relief to  install a six feet high solid 
vinyl privacy fence in the rear yard where split rail 2 or 3 rails with wire mesh backing and privacy fencing 
6 feet to 8 feet high panels within 16 feet of rear foundation walls is only permitted.  The request was 
made to  minimize impact of an adjoining property owner.  It was reiterated that parcels with the same 
deed restriction could still oppose the fence by filing a complaint and enforcing the deed restriction which 
could result in the fence being removed.  General discussion was opposition to setting a precedent by 
allowing a privacy fence in the rear yard.  Two adjoining property owners contacted Township staff 
opposing the fence in the storm water easement and requested it be installed similar to adjoining 
properties 6 feet from the rear property line.  In response to the property owner believing a neighbor had 
poisoned their dog, Chief Dickinson, Jr. stated the Police need to be contacted so a record can be made 
and recommended installing security cameras.  
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to grant Township relief from the fence deed 
restriction at 712 Campus Drive parcel 12-029-157 contingent on the fence being 4 ½ feet high specrail 
aluminum fence as approved for previous relief requests, compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, 
requestor securing any and all other approvals and proceeding at their own risk.  With no additional 
discussion, all present voted in favor. 
 
Zoning Permit Fee Waiver Request 
On motion by Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, approving a requested zoning fee waiver for the 
Pennridge School District’s Class of 2021 prom celebration firework display in the amount of $500.00.  With 
no additional discussion, the motion passed 2-1 with Mr. Nietupski voting in opposition to fee waiver.   
 
Three Mile Run Road Pumping Station Replacement.  Mrs. Morano stated requests for proposals for the 
Three Mile Run Pump Station replacement financing in the amount of $500,000.00 with 20-year term or 
25-year term options are anticipated to be received on or before June 1, 2021. 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to authorize the Township Solicitor to prepare 
and advertise an Ordinance to secure a note for Three Mile Run Road Pump Station Replacement.  With 
no additional discussion, all present voted in favor. 
 
Access to Perkasie Regional Water Facility at Willard H. Markey Centennial Park.   Mrs. Morano noted a 
Bulk Water Supply Agreement between Perkasie Regional Authority and BR Scholl Sales and Service, Inc. 
is on file. Mr. Nyman questioned Township review of this private transaction. 
 
PFAS Contamination Remediation Update.  Mrs. Morano advised the Board Perkasie Regional Authority 
has sent notification to Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to request a meeting 
to discuss potential public water access to properties with high levels of contamination at a reduced cost 
due to a pending land development.  Mr. Baluh noted DEP was contacted prior to the subdivision being 
approved so public water consideration would not be delayed longer than necessary.  
 
Street Tree Removal Request.  As requested at the April 27, 2021 Supervisor meeting estimates were 
obtained from contractors to replace one sidewalk square which is $1,500.00.  It was noted the requestor 

MMorano
Draft



East Rockhill Township  
Board of Supervisors 

May 25, 2021 Minutes 
P a g e  | 3 of 4 

 

at 708 Campus Drive did not respond to Township correspondence and the property has recently sold.  
Mrs. Morano will prepare a Resolution to memorialize requiring an escrow of $1,500.00 to guarantee all 
sidewalks are repaired after a street tree is removed.  
 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to approve the Township Manager Report.  With 
no additional discussion, all present voted in favor. 
 
Public Works Report:  Jeff Scholl 
Mr. Scholl updated the Board on Public Works activities as of May 20, 2021.  Of note, the street sweeper 
will be returning to roads that were oil & chipped for loose stone collection.  The report is on file.  
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to approve the Township Public Works Report.  
With no additional discussion, all present voted in favor.   
 
Township Engineer Report:  Steve Baluh, P.E.  
Release of Escrow Vouchers. 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to approve the Pennridge Airport Business Park 
Voucher Number 8 dated May 20, 2021 payable to Wynn Associates in the amount of $492.67 for 
construction observation and escrow administration as presented.  With no additional discussion, all 
present voted in favor. 
 
Subdivision Plan Review Status.  Review dated May 6, 2021 is in the Board’s packets.   
 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to accept the Township Engineer’s report.   With 
no additional discussion, all present voted in favor. 
 
Township Solicitor Report:  Wil Oetinger, Esq. 
Re-Sale Use and Occupancy.  Mr. Oetinger noted at the Planning Commission meeting reviewing the 
McClennen Tract it was suggested subsequent buyers be required to sign off on deed restriction.  
Consensus of the Board was to draft an Ordinance for the McClennen Tract requiring re-sale notification.  
 
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to accept the Township Solicitor’s report.   With 
no additional discussion, all present voted in favor. 
 
Board and Commission Reports 
Pennridge Regional Police Department:  Chief Dickinson, Jr.  
Chief Dickinson Jr. thanked the Board and Commission for a heartfelt welcome at the Police Commission 
April 26, 2021 meeting.  The Chief shared the April, 2021 Pennridge Regional Police activity report.  The 
report is on file.  
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to accept the Pennridge Regional Police 
Department report.  With no additional discussion, all present voted in favor.   
 
Planning Commission Report:  Anne Fenley 

MMorano
Draft



East Rockhill Township  
Board of Supervisors 

May 25, 2021 Minutes 
P a g e  | 4 of 4 

 

Mrs. Fenley shared highlights of the May 13, 2021 meeting.  The agenda and draft minutes were provided 
to the Board.  Mrs. Fenley recommended no personal items in open space be added to the re-sale draft 
Ordinance.  
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to accept the Planning Commission report.  With 
no additional discussion, all present voted in favor.   
 
Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority:  David Nyman 
Mr. Nyman shared the May 24, 2021 meeting report.   The April, 2021 minutes and flow reports were 
provided to the Board.   
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to accept the Pennridge Wastewater Treatment 
Authority report.  With no additional discussion, all present voted in favor.   
 
Department and Emergency Services Reports 
On motion by Mr. Volovnik, seconded by Mr. Nietupski, to acknowledge receipt of the Department and 
Emergency Services reports.  With no additional discussion, all present voted in favor.   
 
New or Other Business – Supervisors’ Items 

• Mr. Nietupski noted the flashing on the front of the Municipal Office is buckling.  Mr. Baluh will 
contact the General Contractor. 

• Mr. Volovnik stated his opposition to street trees between the sidewalk and curb which have 
caused problems for homeowners.  Mr. Baluh has placed a recommendation in the McClennen 
Tract review letter for consideration of a different location.  If necessary, a waiver can be granted.  
The requirement could be removed from the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance as part 
of the zoning ordinance review. 

• Mr. Nietupski stated there were too many steps from the parking area to the new polling location 
at Bucks County Community College.  Mr. Volovnik believed the first floor would be made available 
after it was no longer needed for COVID vaccinations.  Mrs. Morano will contact Bucks County 
Board of Elections with the concern.  
 

Public Comment #2:   

• Mrs. Fenley, 1500 Branch Road, believed the November election would be held on a third floor. 

• Blake Eisenhart, 2031 West Rock Road, is on the Bucks County Community College Board of 
Trustees and accessing the polling location will be top priority for the incoming President.  

 
Adjournment: 
On motion by Mr. Nietupski, seconded by Mr. Volovnik, to adjourn the regular meeting into Executive 
Session.  With no additional discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 8:07p.m. 
  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Marianne Morano 
Township Manager 

MMorano
Draft



Unpaid 2021 Bills List

June 18, 2021

Payable To Memo Amount

General Fund - 01

BIU Code Services 04/2021 1,575.00             

BC Tour of Honor Donation 250.00                

Shadywood Communications Enews 06/2021 215.00                

Chase Credit Card Municipal Office landscaping 336.84                

Clemens Uniform Uniforms  176.85                

Clemons Richter & Reiss WEGBB 5/2021 739.20                *

Clemons Richter & Reiss Parissi 5/2021 605.51                *

Comcast Phone & Internet 367.10                

Davis Feed Grass Seed 66.90                  

Delaware Valley Health Insurance (DVHT) Insurance Premium 10,050.16           

Dunlap SLK Debt Certificate 100.00                

Emerald Garden Lawn Maintenance 1,272.04             

Feeney's Nursery Municipal Complex Plants 2,620.12             

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Covid 19 160.00                

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor General Matters  1,040.00             

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Litigation 363.00                

IT Business Solutions Monthly IT & Part 484.00                

Jones Topsoil Municipal Complex Lawn 114.00                

Keystone Collections Group EIT Commission 2,209.90             *

Keystone Collections Group Costs Retained by Tax Officer (Act 192) 313.29                *

Keystone Collections Group EIT Taxpayer Refunds 1,442.58             *

Keystone Collections Group LST Commission 126.87                *

Lawson Products Shop Supplies 102.47                

Manko Gold Katcher Fox Township Environmental Solicitor Rockhill Quarry 621.25                

Marianne Morano Mileage Reimb. Jan-Jun 2021 600.00                

M&W Precast ERT Renovation Downspouts 569.19                

Neat & Clean Township Office  280.00                

Pennridge Regional Police Police Services 82,559.00           

Pitney Bowes Postage on Reserve 600.00                

PP&L Electric Parking Lot Lights 129.53                

PP&L Electric Municipal Office 105.37                

PP&L Electric Garage/Shop 91.19                  

Principal Financial Group Insurance Premium 347.55                

PSATS 2021 PAAZO Spring Forum 125.00                

Quakertown National Bank 2013 Note Interest 2,134.70             *

Ready Refresh Rent/Prepay 60.00                  

Reiss Hauling & Recycling, Inc. Trash & Recycling Service 1,930.00             

Page 2 of 5



Unpaid 2021 Bills List

June 18, 2021

Payable To Memo Amount

Ricoh Prepay Copier Rental 128.07                

Ricoh-Images Black & White/Color Copies 36.17                  

Riggins Unleaded Fuel 397.24                

Riggins Diesel Fuel 253.97                

Staples Credit Plan Supplies 80.22                  

Sprint Cell Phone Service 4/2021 133.41                *

Wynn Associates Township Engineer General Matters 604.38                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer ERT Bldg Addition 379.75                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer Twp Maintenance Complex 254.38                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer PFC Groundwater Study 94.68                  

Wynn Associates Township Engineer Zoning Permit Reviews 364.89                

General Fund 117,610.77$     

Fire Fund - 03

PP&L Electric Substation 100.82                

Amerigas Propane 311.20                

Fire Fund 412.02$             

Open Space Fund - 05

Keystone Collections Group EIT Commission 1,050.50             *

Keystone Collections Group Taxpayer Refunds 721.23                *

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor 1404 W Schwenkmill Rd 574.25                

Open Space Fund 2,345.98$          

Sewer Fund - 08

Anchor Pump & Eng Equipment Treatment Plant Repair 328.25                

Bullseye Pumping Station Alarm Service 138.29                

Delaware Valley Health Insurance (DVHT) Insurance Premium 694.71                

Emerald Garden Lawn Maintenance 351.96                

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Pump Station Three Mile Run 688.00                

Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Sewer Matters 65.25                  

MJ Reider Associates Lab Analysis 550.00                

PA One Call Monthly Activity 36.86                  

PP&L Electric Pump Station 426.80                

PP&L Electric Treatment Plant 1,918.26             

Principal Financial Group Premium 294.54                

Riggins Unleaded 432.94                

Riggins Diesel 469.54                

Sprint Cell Phone Service 4/2021 88.94                  *

Univar Supplies 2,530.60             

Page 3 of 5



Unpaid 2021 Bills List

June 18, 2021

Payable To Memo Amount

Sewer Fund 8,686.69$          

Park & Recreation / Driving Range Fund -09

George Allen Portable Toilets Inc. Markey Centennial Park 160.00                

Auto Plus Parts 66.43                  

Chase Credit Card supplies 69.42                  

Davis Feed Mulch 33.90                  

Dog Waste Depot dog waste bags for parks 392.00                

Emerald Garden Lawn Maintenance 645.00                

Lapps Landscape Mulch 468.00                

Littles Supplies 54.84                  

Miller Tire & Auto Supplies 33.92                  

PP&L Electric Markey Centennial Park Sign 32.11                  

PP&L Electric Markey Centennial Park Buildings 46.55                  

Park & Rec / Driving Range Fund 2,002.17$          

Street Light Fund - 13

PP&L Electric Street Lights 1,582.71             

Street Light Fund 1,582.71$          

Capital Improvement Fund - 19

MJF Electrical Contracting, Inc. Application #10 final payment no retainage 8,737.00             

Capital Improvement Fund 8,737.00$          

Building Debt Fund - 22

Pennridge Regional Police Department Principle and Interest Debt Payment 5,797.22             

Building Debt Fund 5,797.22$          

State Aid (Liquid Fuel) Fund - 35

H&K Repair Materials 268.12                

Miller Bros Signal Maintenance 1,213.60             

PK Moyer Street Sweeper 737.50                

PP&L Electric Signal 313 & 5th 34.67                  

PP&L Electric Flasher 5th Street 30.57                  

PP&L Electric Signal Campus & 5th 40.20                  

PP&L Electric Signal 313 & 563 35.04                  

PP&L Electric Flasher Schwenkmill Road 30.86                  

PP&L Electric Signal 313 & Mountain View 44.27                  

PP&L Electric Flasher Mountain View 30.38                  

State Aid Fund 2,465.21$          

Page 4 of 5



Unpaid 2021 Bills List

June 18, 2021

Payable To Memo Amount

Escrow Fund - 90

Grim Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Fox Hill Subdivision 152.00                

Grim Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Hyseni Lot Line Chg 57.00                  

Grim Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor PSD Sports Fields 361.00                

Grim Biehn & Thatcher Township Solicitor Select Property/McClennan 817.00                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer PSD Tennis Courts/Parking 1,438.01             

Wynn Associates Township Engineer McClennan Tract 2,883.39             

Wynn Associates Township Engineer Mehmanus Holdings LLC 176.54                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer JDM Group LLC - Children Home 36.75                  

Wynn Associates Township Engineer Hyseni Lot Line Adjustment 170.61                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer PSD Tennis Ct/Parking Constr. 188.79                

Wynn Associates Township Engineer Fox Hill 530.20                

Michael DiBello Return Escrow 58.30                  

Escrow fund 6,869.59$          

Total Unpaid Bills 156,509.36$      

*denotes already paid

Page 5 of 5

MMorano
Not Approved



EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP 
BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 

 
TAX COLLECTION COMMITTEE DELEGATE APPOINTMENT 

 
 

Background.  Act 32 § 505(b) requires the governing bodies of school districts, townships, 
boroughs, and cities to appoint one voting delegate and one or more alternate delegates to be 
their Tax Collection Committee (TCC) representatives.  The purpose of this resolution is to 
appoint the required delegates.  The appointed individuals have consented to appointment. 
 

RESOLVED, by the governing body of East Rockhill Township, that the following individuals 
are appointed as TCC delegates for East Rockhill Township: 
 

1. Primary Voting Delegate:    Marianne Morano 

2. First Alternate Voting Delegate:  Bonnie Schorr 

3. Second Alternate Voting Delegate:  Kathleen Percetti 

4. If the primary voting delegate cannot be present for a TCC meeting, the first alternate 
voting delegate shall be the representative at the TCC meeting.  If both the primary voting 
delegate and the first alternate voting delegate cannot be present for a TCC meeting, the 
second alternate voting delegate shall be the representative at the TCC meeting. 

5. These appointments are effective immediately and shall continue until successors are 
appointed.  Delegates shall be appointed each year in November or December or as soon 
thereafter as possible.  All delegates shall serve at the pleasure of this governing body and 
may be removed at any time. 

 
Certification of Adoption.  The undersigned certifies that the above Resolution was adopted 

at a public meeting on this date. 
 
EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
DATE:_______________ ________________________________ 

David R. Nyman, Chairperson 
 
 

________________________________ 
Gary W. Volovnik, Vice Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

 
________________________________ 
James C. Nietupski, Member 

Marianne K. Morano 

MMorano
Not Approved



MMorano
Not Approved



MMorano
Not Approved





 

 

EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP 
BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR THE REMOVAL OF STREET TREES AND SIDEWALK 
REPAIR 

 

WHEREAS, the East Rockhill Township Board of Supervisors recognizes street trees may cause 
unintended lifting of sidewalks;   

 

WHEREAS, the East Rockhill Township Board of Supervisors recognizes sidewalks are the 
responsibility of Property Owners and street trees are the responsibility of East Rockhill Township;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED by the East Rockhill Township Board of Supervisors 
to establish a policy for the removal of street trees and sidewalk repair:   

 

1. Sidewalk to be lifted a minimum of two inches (2”) as a result of tree roots. 

2. Tree removal request submitted in writing from Property Owner with photos. 

3. Township Staff will verify sidewalk has lifted the minimum two inches (2”) prior to Board 
of Supervisor consideration at a regularly convened meeting. 

4. Board of Supervisor authorizes the removal of the street tree. 

5. Prior to tree removal, Property Owner to post $1,500.00 in escrow to guarantee the 
sidewalk is repaired or replaced within six (6) months of the tree removal.  

6. Township Staff will remove the tree.  The street tree will not be replaced.  

7. After repair or replacement of the damaged sidewalk, Property Owner shall submit 
Return of Escrow Funds form for Township Staff to verify the sidewalk has been 
repaired and process the return of escrow funds according to the current fee schedule.  

8. Should the sidewalk not be repaired or replaced within 6 months of street tree removal 
the Township will repair the sidewalk and escrow funds will not be returned.  Any 
charges in excess of the escrow will be invoiced to the Property Owner. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Township of East Rockhill, County of Bucks, the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, this 22nd day of June, 2021.  

 

EAST ROCKHILL TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 ____________________________ 
 David R. Nyman, Chairperson 

 
 ____________________________ 
  Gary W. Volovnik, Vice-Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 ____________________________ 

James C. Nietupski, Member 
Marianne K. Morano, Manager 

MMorano
Not Approved















MMorano
Not Approved


	04   -   2021 Unpaid Bills 6-18-2021
	05a  -   2021-09   TCC Delegate Appointment - Tracked Changes (Resolution)
	05b  -   2021-10 MunicipalResolution dotGrants and agreement
	05c  -   2021-11 Destruction of Specific Records
	05d  -   2021-12 Street Tree Removal Request and Escrow Procedure
	05e  -   Live Street Tree Removal Requests for Approval - 25 Greenleaf
	06   -   Public Works Report 6-16-21
	07b  -   6-3-21 Plan Status memo
	07b  -   Extension Letter - Green Ridge West - to 9-30-2021
	07b  -   Extension Letter - McClennen Tract ERT 90 Day Extension Request to 10-7-2021
	09a  -   PRPD May 2021 Activity
	09c  -   BOS to PWTA - 1975 Agreement
	09d  -   PACC Meeting Note 5-27-21
	10   -   Departmental Receipts Log May 2021
	10   -   Dublin Fire Report & Calls for May 2021
	10   -   Elected  Tax Collectors Report May 2021
	10   -   PW Hour Breakdown May 2021
	10   -   SFD May 21 Incidents
	10   -   Treasurer Report May 2021
	Exec - Schlosser Preservation Request - land locked parcels
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



